
___________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, June 16, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, June 16, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 06/02/2014 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 

may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. PRESENTATION 
  
7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director, the Chief of Police 

and the Library Director.  
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of Water Rate Structure 
B. Approval of Resolution No. 1843 Accepting Dedication of Public Rights of 

Way and Easements in the Sunset Ridge Subdivision 
C. Review of May 2014 Check Register 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 
  
11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 60



___________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, June 16, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on 
meetings attended and other items. 

B. July 2014 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 4th of July Celebration-Full day of activities on Friday, July 4 on Commercial 

Street 
 North Plains Marketplace every Thursday evening on Commercial Street 
 234th Army Band-Concert in the Park, Wednesday, July 16 at Jessie Mays 

@ 6:30. 
 
15. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (No action may be taken in executive session. If action 

needs to be taken, the Council will do so in regular session.) 
A. Adjourn to Executive Session in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(i) and 

192.660(8) regarding employee performance evaluations 
1) To review employee performance of the City Manager  

  
16. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City 
will also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and 
other services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, 
please call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North 
Plains Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

Monday, July 7, 2014 Monday, July 21, 2014 Monday, August 4, 2014 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 60



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, June 2, 2014 
Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 

Monday, June 2, 2014 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 
Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Michael Broome, Michael Demagalski, Charlynn Newton, Robert Kindel, Jr., and Glen 
Warren 

 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Public Works 
Director Blake Boyles, Library Director Debra Brodie, Finance Director Rachael 
Lembo, Acting City Recorder Gail Waibel 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 05/19/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 None were forthcoming 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 
  
Chief of Police Snyder provided historical information related to the formation of the North 
Plains Police Department in 1968.  The original department was comprised of all volunteer 
force trained by the Hillsboro Police Department.  The relationship with Hillsboro has been 
long standing. Chief Snyder presented the following awards: 
 

 Officer Tim Thurber, recognized for fourteen years of outstanding service to the North 
Plains Police Department. 

 Officer Jody Peterson, awarded “Meritorious Service Commendation” including 
exceptional service related to drug crimes. 

 Officer of the Year, awarded for exceptional service on the North Plains Police 
Department.  Two officers were awarded the Officer of the Year Award: 

 Officer Jessie Baker 
 Officer Sam Freshner 

 
Councilor Kindel provided additional information on the need for formation of the Police 
Department.  He stressed the department has been good ever since it started.   The Council 
thanked Chief Snyder for recognizing the Police Officers and providing the history of the 
department. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 60



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, June 2, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

Chief Snyder indicated a recent reserve officer has been added to the force.  Officer Eric 
Shafer arrived at the meeting prior to Public Hearing Item 8.A and Chief Snyder 
administrated the ceremonial oath to Officer Shafer. 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Public Works: Public Works Director Boyles referred to the Public Works Department staff 
report in the Council packet.  Boyles reported the Parks Board has received proposals from 
architectural firms. Three proposals were submitted with two containing written bios of the 
companies but did not address the project.  As a result, the two firms were invited to submit 
detailed proposals. Boyles said Public Works is dealing with ODOT on the pedestrian trail, a 
$1 million funding project.  The City has asked for conceptual drawings to take back to the 
residents for discussion regarding impact to the area. A report on the project will come to 
City Council in two weeks. There have been two pre-construction meetings on the property 
on North Avenue and the property on Pacific.  Ground has been broken to begin work on the 
houses in 45 days.   
 
Police Dept:  Chief Snyder reported there is an increase in night time activity related to 
theft. Officers will be attending firearms training in June and July.  There was discussion 
regarding a liquor license for the North Plains Market which was tabled at the May 19, 2014 
City Council meeting pending additional report from Chief Snyder. Chief Snyder reported he 
talked with Police Department staff and no negative comments were received.  Snyder also 
called OLCC and no problems were noted in regard to selling hard liquor in other towns.  No 
further action was required by the City Council.  Mayor Hatcher indicated he would sign the 
letter supporting the issuance of a liquor license. 
 
There was brief discussion regarding the Chief’s schedule and the upcoming street closures 
on Saturday and Sunday due to the community events.  Mayor Hatcher called attention to 
the Police Department’s 12-month recap report in the packets. 
 
Library Director:  Library Director Brodie referred to the Library Department staff report in 
the packet.  Brodie reported the Summer Reading Program for all ages begins June 1st.  
The special kickoff for the Little Tykes Reading Program is June 25th.  First Friday Flick will 
be held at a new location this year - the Jessie Mays Community Hall - starting Friday, June 
6.  The Friends of the Library Meeting is scheduled for Monday, June 9 at the Library from 
7:30-9 p.m. to discuss the extension of the Ground Lease agreement.  There is one position 
vacant on the Library Board.  Applicants must reside within the City limits of North Plains.  
Applications submitted will be on the City Council agenda in July. 
 
Councilor Lenahan asked when the Library Board starts planning for teen activities for the 
year.  Brodie responded the staff works with WCCLS and programs are set in March of each 
year.  Lenahan indicated she would meet with Brodie for discussion regarding programs 
geared toward engaging teens. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Discussion of probable uses of State Revenue Sharing 
 

City Manager DeBry reviewed the process required to receive State Revenue Sharing 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 60



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, June 2, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

funds. Two public hearings are required by state law. The first public hearing was held 
before the Budget Committee on April 14, 2014 and second public hearing is required 
before the City Council giving citizens an opportunity to comment on the use of State 
Revenue Sharing.  
 
Mayor Hatcher opened the Public Hearing at 7:25 p.m. for discussion of probable uses of 
State Revenue Sharing.  There was no discussion.  Mayor Hatcher closed the Public 
Hearing at 7:25 p.m. 
 

B. Adoption of Resolution No.1836 establishing the FY2014-15 Master Fee Schedule 
 

Finance Director Lembo reviewed the FY2014-15 Master Fee Schedule.  The schedule has 
been published with the budget for the past three years.  Fees are developed based on the 
City’s actual cost to provide services. There was brief discussion. 
 
Mayor Hatcher opened the Public Hearing at 7:27 p.m.  There was no testimony received.  
Mayor Hatcher closed the Public Hearing at 7:27 p.m.   
 
Motion by Kindel, seconded by Demagalski, to adopt Resolution No. 1836 - A Resolution of 
the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, revising the Master Fee Schedule.  The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Public Hearing and adoption of Resolution No. 1837 approving FY2014-15 City of 
North Plains Budget 

 
Finance Director Lembo presented the staff report.  There were several questions and 
discussion from the City Council.  Generally, the questions were for clarification regarding 
State Revenue Sharing, salaries and publication requirements.  Lembo explained the State 
Law requirements for giving the public a chance to review and comment on the proposed 
budget.  No changes were made to the budget once the recommendation to present to 
Council was approved by the Budget Committee. Lembo stated there have been no 
changes to the budget since it was published. There was a question regarding the 
appropriation for the increase of $5,000 from contingency for the July fireworks.  Lembo 
explained the Supplemental Budget process and the options available to City Council for 
changing the budget.  City Manager DeBry noted the budget could be increased up to 
$5,000 during the process under State Law without republication. 
 
Mayor Hatcher opened the Public Hearing at 7:44 p.m. for public comments on adoption of 
Resolution No. 1837 approving FY 2014-15 City of North Plains Budget.  There was no 
testimony received.  Mayor Hatcher closed the Public Hearing at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Motion by Broome, seconded by Warren, to adopt Resolution No. 1837 which included an 
amendment moving $5,000 from the Council Contingency to the Culture and Recreation line 
item for fireworks. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
The addition of $5,000 to the Culture and Recreation line item will be a total budgeted 
amount of $10,000 for fireworks in FY 2014-15. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 60



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, June 2, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

9. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Adopt Resolution No.1838 Establishing Eligibility of the City to Receive State 
Shared Revenues for FY 2014-2015 

 
Motion by Kindel, seconded by Warren, to adopt Resolution No. 1838:  a Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon Certifying the Provision of Municipal 
Services enumerated in ORS 221.760 and Establishing Eligibility of the City to Receive 
State Shared Revenues for FY 2014-2015.  The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Adopt Resolution No.1839 Declaring City’s Election to Receive State Revenues 
 
Motion by Lenahan, seconded by Broome, to adopt Resolution No. 1839:  A Resolution of 
the City of Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Declaring the City’s Election to 
Receive State Shared Revenues for Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

C. Adopt Resolution No.1840 approving the three year contract with Dennis Conner, 
CPA 

City Manager DeBry and Finance Director Lembo presented the staff report.  The City’s 
financial statements have been audited by the same firm for four years.  DeBry said it is time 
for “fresh eyes” to review the finances indicating it is good to change auditors every three to 
five years.  Lembo reviewed the RFP process and the proposals received.  In addition to the 
City’s audit, the contract will include a review of the URA when required.  Audit fees were 
budgeted in the 2014-2015 budget.  Following discussion, staff recommended the City 
Council accept the audit services proposal from Dennis Conner, CPA. 
Motion by Demagalski, seconded by Lenahan, to adopt Resolution No. 1840:  A Resolution 
of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Accepting the Audit Services 
Proposal from Dennis Conner, CPA.  The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

D. Review of FY2013-14 Budget and adoption of Resolution No.1841 Approving 
budget transfer of appropriations 

 
Lembo presented the staff report, reviewing in detail the FY2013-14 budget with actuals and 
estimated year end totals as of May 15, 2014.   Lembo said the City at end of year is 
stronger than originally estimated and next year’s budget will start with higher fund 
balances.  Lembo reviewed Resolution No. 1841 setting forth the “Transfer of existing 
appropriation” and the “Transfer funded by additional revenue”.    
 
Following brief discussion, motion by Lenahan, seconded by Warren, to adopt Resolution 
No. 1841:  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, to Approve 
Fiscal Year 2013-14 Budget Transfer of Appropriations.  The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

E. Adopt Resolution No.1842 approving IGA between Washington County 
Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) and the City of North 
Plains. 

 
City Manager DeBry explained the City has partnered with Washington County to participate 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 60



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, June 2, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

in the Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) for several years.  Resolution 
No. 1842 continues the intergovernmental agreement, attached to the resolution. 
 
Motion by Kindel, seconded by Demagalski, to adopt Resolution No. 1842:  A Resolution of 
the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Authorizing the Mayor to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between Washington County Community Development Block 
Grant Program and the City of North Plains for Fiscal Years 2015-2017.  The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 

F. Discussion of April 2014 Check Register 
 
There was brief discussion regarding vehicle maintenance and cost for battery chargers for 
the police vehicles. DeBry indicated she will discuss the matter with Chief Snyder and report 
back to Council. There were also comments regarding plumbing issues, vandalism at the 
Library and training for the City Recorder.  The City Office remodel was also reviewed.    No 
action was taken on this item. 
 

G.  Adopt Resolution No. 1843 Worker’s Compensation coverage to Public Safety 
Volunteers 

 
City Manager DeBry presented the staff report noting CIS has asked for clarification on what 
City volunteers are covered other than those in Public Safety.  If adopted, the City will 
purchase a volunteer accident policy to cover all City volunteers other than Public Safety 
volunteers.  DeBry noted the City has lots of volunteers that receive no compensation.  This 
resolution provides Workers’ Compensation to safety volunteers if injured.  A separate 
insurance policy will provide insurances for other volunteers.    
 
Motion by Demagalski, seconded by Warren, to adopt Resolution No. 1843:  A Resolution of 
the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, approving Extending Workers’ 
Compensation Coverage to Public Safety Volunteers of City of North Plains, Oregon.  The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

None Scheduled 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
The 15th Annual Ice Cream Social, scheduled for Thursday, June 5 is ready to go.  Cindy 
Hirst will be preparing the strawberries donated by the Farmer’s Market.  Tables will be 
placed on Main Street.  20 vendors are participating.  This is a “kick start” to Farmers 
Market. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 60



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, June 2, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

 
Smokehouse Summit Blues, Brews and Championship BBQ Competition, Saturday and 
Sunday, June 7 & 8 on Commercial Street.  KUPL will be on site Sunday.  An article was in 
the Oregonian.  Celebrity judges will be there.   
 
Two sub-divisions have started:  North Estates and Pacific Estates. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Councilor Warren will be attending the Planning Commission on June 11 and Councilor 
Broom will be attending the Library Board meeting on June 18.  
 
Warren indicated he can no longer attend the MACC meetings.  DeBry noted this is an 
important year with the cable franchise negotiations.  DeBry indicated she could attend.  
Demagalski noted as alternate he can also attend. 
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 North Plains Marketplace Grand opening-Thursday, June 5 at 5:00, Commercial 
Street 

 15th Annual Ice Cream Social-Thursday, June 5 at 6:30, Commercial Street 
 First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall, Friday, June 6 at 6:00 p.m. 
 Smokehouse Summit BBQ Competition, Saturday and Sunday, June 7 & 8 on 

Commercial Street 
 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (No action may be taken in executive session. If action 
needs to be taken, the Council will do so in regular session.) 

 
There was discussion regarding outstanding questions on the evaluation form and all forms 
had not been received.  The Executive Session on the performance of the City Manager 
was postponed until the next City Council meeting. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 9:02 p.m. 

 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ___________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 60



 

Agenda Item No: 9A      

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  June 11, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager  

Subject: Discussion of water rates 

Request: Council discuss options for reducing water rates.   
 
Background:  The Budget Committee recommended that Council review the water rate 
structure and expenses.   
 
Water Revenues are fairly simple.  About half of revenues are reserves that carry over 
from year to year.  Of these reserves, about 1/3 must be dedicated to capital 
improvement projects, and the remainder can be used for capital projects or operations.  
Charges for water services comprise the bulk of annual revenue, and fund daily 
operations.  Most of North Plains’ water revenue is derived from residential customers.  
There is some variability in this revenue stream depending on consumption of water.  
SDC’s are generally placed into reserves, or passed thru to the Joint Water 
Commission.  
 

 
 
Water expenses can be defined broadly into 6 categories.   

1. Wholesale water purchases equals 14% of the budget and can vary by +/-20% in 
any given year.  Usually the variation is within 10% of the prior year.  The City 

Reserves
48%

Charges for 
services

37%

SDC
9%

SDC pass thru
6%

Miscellaneous 
income

0%

REVENUE SOURCES

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 60



tends to budget this figure conservatively.  Water purchases have been fairly 
consistent in the past 7 years.  

 
 
Within a year purchases by month vary. 

 
 
2. Debt service remains at $134,332 through 2025, which is also about 14%.   
 
3. SDC pass thru expenses are 15% of the budget and are funds collected on 

behalf of other agencies and are not discretionary revenues of the City.   

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

TOTAL WATER PURCHASE BY YEAR

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

Water Purchases 2005-2014

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 60



4. Other materials and services such as supplies and professional services 
comprise about 10% of the water operational costs.  This cost has been stripped 
to bare minimum to operate.   

 
5. Project costs are relatively low $76,000 in 2015 which is only 8% of the budget.   

 
6. The bulk of expenses are transfers to the General Fund for personnel expenses 

which is 39% of the budget.  
 
About 43% of the budget reflects fixed costs for water consumption, pass thru or debt 
service expenses.  The expenses the City can influence are the timing of capital 
projects, materials and services, and personnel expenses.  Because most of the 
materials costs are very lean, the only place for the City to gain significant cost 
reductions is in personnel costs.   
 
In 2015, staff proposed a Public Works budget that included one less full-time position 
in favor of $40,000 of temporary employee funding for approximately 2,400 man hours 
of labor (1.5 FTE).  (It should be noted Council could reallocate a portion of this funding 
towards a full-time position if such a position is merited after further study is completed.)  
Public Works is more closely documenting its use of staff time.  Similarly, one position 
was eliminated from General Government to further reduce water expenses (as well as 
General Fund expenses.)  The Finance function has changed substantially in recent 
years, and new efficiencies should allow the same the level of service to be preserved 
to the public, while reducing overall expenses for operations.  While technically the City 
could afford to employ another person for water operations, it is not clear that identified 
body of work merits the addition of the position and related expenses.  
 
The Water fund supports the following positions: 
 

Positions % of Position Cost Amount 

Public Works Director   
Utility Worker III 50% $164,977 
Utility Worker II   

Temporary Employees   
Finance Director   
Account Clerk II   
City Recorder 47% $149,635 
City Manager   

Temporary Employees   
 
The remaining costs of these positions is absorbed by the General Fund (35%) and 
Street Fund (15%).  At this time preliminary information suggests that the Water 
operation only consumes around 30% of Public Works Staff time which suggests that 
the Water Fund’s contribution to the General Fund for Public Works may be too high.  
The bulk of staff time in Finance is spent on water related activities including billing, 
payment acceptance, accounts payable and related personnel administration. 
 
What are we reserving capital for? 
The timing of capital projects are regularly reviewed by staff.  Several projects have 
been deferred which has reduced the need to reserve capital funding.  Rates have been 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 60



established to raise enough capital to fund projects on a 20 year horizon.  The 
consequence of planning to pay cash for projects in the future is that residents who 
have been burdened since 2005 with servicing large debt for the JWC transmission line, 
are also shouldering the bulk burden for large projects that will occur in the early 2020’s.  
In other words water rates will continue to be extraordinarily high through 2025.  
Increases will be needed on an annual basis until capital funding needs can be met in 
2020. After 2021 this strategy will build reserves very rapidly for future projects.  
 
Currently, almost $1.1 million is kept in reserve for operations and capital projects.   
 
At this time the Council could consider its philosophy regarding reserve goals in water.  
There are a few questions that should be considered: 
 

1) Is it important to reduce rates now or in the future? 
2) Is the Council willing to consider future debt for future projects? 

 
If the answer to either question is no, then a discussion of rate scenarios is 
unnecessary.  Council can estimate future rate increases by looking at Scenario 1A.  
 
If Council is willing to consider rate reductions between 5%-25% and/or future debt, 
Scenarios 1-12 provide an estimation of the impact on residents. Below is a summary of 
rate scenarios: 
 

Scenario 
Rate 
Reduction 

Debt in 
2021 

Year for 
next 
increase 

Magnitude of Increase to fund 
known projects and retain $500k 
in 2022 

1 0%  2016 Raise $1.6 M over 7 years 
1A 0%  2016 Includes projected rate increases 

needed to raise $1.6 M 
2 0% $2M 2030 NA 
3 -5%  2016 Raise $1.8 M over 7 years 
4 -5% $2M 2030 NA 
5 -10%  2016 Raise $1.8 M over 7 years 
6 -10% $2M 2029  
7 -15%  2016 Raise $2.1 M over 7 years 
8 -15% $2M 2028  
9 -20%  2016 Raise $2.3 M over 7 years 

10 -20% $2M 2018 Raise $300 k over 3 years 
11 -25%  2016 Raise $2.4 M over 7 years 
12 -25% $2M 2016 Raise $450 k over 7 years 

 
Fiscal Impact:  If council decides to reduce rates or issue future debt the water rates 
charged to consumers will be effected as well as the funds available for reserves. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. Council may provide direction to 
staff for rate modifications.  
 
Attachments:  Rate Scenarios 1-12, CIP projects 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 60



Projection 0% change and no debt Scenario 1

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,250,300 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $840 $84,000 $147,000 $168,000 $210,000 $252,000 $252,000 $252,000 $273,000 $294,000 $315,000 $336,000 $336,000 $336,000
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,334,300 $1,272,270 $1,293,270 $1,335,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,287,170 $1,308,170 $1,329,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170

Rate decrease 0% $0

Total Revenue $1,250,300 $1,334,300 $1,272,270 $1,293,270 $1,335,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,287,170 $1,308,170 $1,329,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170

Revenue in excess of operating  $363,958 $417,628 $323,751 $311,311 $318,200 $323,333 $284,623 $243,977 $222,299 $198,487 $172,435 $119,963 $68,087 $13,618

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $624,252 $965,880 $1,229,630 $1,304,941 $1,325,141 $1,597,474 $1,581,097 $225,075 ‐$771,626 ‐$624,139 ‐$502,704 ‐$433,741 ‐$416,654 ‐$506,036

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years

Remaining Capital $548,252 $905,880 $993,630 $1,006,941 $1,274,141 $1,296,474 ‐$18,903 ‐$993,925 ‐$822,626 ‐$675,139 ‐$553,704 ‐$484,741 ‐$519,654 ‐$627,036

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 60



Projection rate increases to raise adequate capital by 2021 Scenario 1 A

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,071,807 $1,123,683 $1,178,152

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,287,809 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $840 $84,000 $147,000 $168,000 $210,000 $252,000 $252,000 $252,000 $273,000 $294,000 $315,000 $336,000 $336,000 $336,000
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,371,809 $1,272,270 $1,293,270 $1,335,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,287,170 $1,308,170 $1,329,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170

Rate decrease 0% 3% 4% 5% 5% 4% 5% 5% 5%

Total Revenue $1,287,809 $1,339,321 $1,406,287 $1,476,602 $1,535,666 $1,612,449 $1,693,072 $1,777,725 $1,777,725 $1,777,725 $1,777,725 $1,777,725 $1,777,725 $1,777,725

Revenue in excess of operating  $401,467 $422,649 $457,768 $494,643 $518,596 $558,512 $600,425 $644,432 $712,854 $668,043 $620,990 $705,918 $654,043 $599,573

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $661,761 $1,008,410 $1,406,178 $1,664,821 $1,885,417 $2,392,929 $2,692,354 $1,736,786 $1,230,641 $1,847,683 $2,417,673 $3,072,591 $3,675,634 $4,172,207

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years

Remaining Capital $585,761 $948,410 $1,170,178 $1,366,821 $1,834,417 $2,091,929 $1,092,354 $517,786 $1,179,641 $1,796,683 $2,366,673 $3,021,591 $3,572,634 $4,051,207

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 60



Projection 0% change and with $2 M debt Scenario 2

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,250,300 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $840 $84,000 $147,000 $168,000 $210,000 $252,000 $252,000 $252,000 $273,000 $294,000 $315,000 $336,000 $336,000 $336,000
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,334,300 $1,272,270 $1,293,270 $1,335,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,287,170 $1,308,170 $1,329,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170

Rate decrease 0% $0

Total Revenue $1,250,300 $1,334,300 $1,272,270 $1,293,270 $1,335,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,377,270 $1,287,170 $1,308,170 $1,329,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170 $1,350,170

Revenue in excess of operating  $363,958 $417,628 $323,751 $311,311 $318,200 $323,333 $284,623 $243,977 $222,299 $198,487 $172,435 $119,963 $68,087 $13,618

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $624,252 $965,880 $1,229,630 $1,304,941 $1,325,141 $1,597,474 $1,581,097 $2,225,075 $1,228,374 $1,375,861 $1,497,296 $1,566,259 $1,583,346 $1,493,964

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $2,000,000

Remaining Capital $548,252 $905,880 $993,630 $1,006,941 $1,274,141 $1,296,474 $1,981,097 $1,006,075 $1,177,374 $1,324,861 $1,446,296 $1,515,259 $1,480,346 $1,372,964

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 60



Projection ‐5% change and no debt Scenario 3

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,071,807 $1,123,683 $1,178,152

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,187,785 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $798 $79,800 $139,650 $159,600 $199,500 $239,400 $239,400 $239,400 $259,350 $279,300 $299,250 $319,200 $319,200 $319,200
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,267,585 $1,264,920 $1,284,870 $1,324,770 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,273,520 $1,293,470 $1,313,420 $1,333,370 $1,333,370 $1,333,370

Rate decrease ‐5% ‐$62,515

Total Revenue 2015 $1,187,785 $1,267,585 $1,264,920 $1,284,870 $1,324,770 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,273,520 $1,293,470 $1,313,420 $1,333,370 $1,333,370 $1,333,370

Revenue in excess of operating  $301,443 $350,913 $316,401 $302,911 $307,700 $310,733 $272,023 $231,377 $208,649 $183,787 $156,685 $261,563 $209,687 $155,218

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $561,737 $836,650 $1,093,050 $1,159,961 $1,169,661 $1,429,394 $1,400,417 $31,795 ‐$978,556 ‐$845,769 ‐$740,084 ‐$529,521 ‐$370,834 ‐$318,616

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years

Remaining Capital $485,737 $776,650 $857,050 $861,961 $1,118,661 $1,128,394 ‐$199,583 ‐$1,187,205 ‐$1,029,556 ‐$896,769 ‐$791,084 ‐$580,521 ‐$473,834 ‐$439,616

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 60



Projection ‐5% change and $2M debt Scenario 4

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,187,785 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $798 $79,800 $139,650 $159,600 $199,500 $239,400 $239,400 $239,400 $259,350 $279,300 $299,250 $319,200 $319,200 $319,200
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,267,585 $1,264,920 $1,284,870 $1,324,770 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,273,520 $1,293,470 $1,313,420 $1,333,370 $1,333,370 $1,333,370

Rate decrease ‐5% ‐$62,515

Total Revenue $1,187,785 $1,267,585 $1,264,920 $1,284,870 $1,324,770 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,364,670 $1,273,520 $1,293,470 $1,313,420 $1,333,370 $1,333,370 $1,333,370

Revenue in excess of operating  $301,443 $350,913 $316,401 $302,911 $307,700 $310,733 $272,023 $231,377 $208,649 $183,787 $156,685 $103,163 $51,287 ‐$3,182

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $561,737 $836,650 $1,093,050 $1,159,961 $1,169,661 $1,429,394 $1,400,417 $2,031,795 $1,021,444 $1,154,231 $1,259,916 $1,312,079 $1,312,366 $1,206,184

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $2,000,000

Remaining Capital $485,737 $776,650 $857,050 $861,961 $1,118,661 $1,128,394 $1,800,417 $812,795 $970,444 $1,103,231 $1,208,916 $1,261,079 $1,209,366 $1,085,184

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 60



Projection ‐10% change and no debt Scenario 5

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,071,807 $1,123,683 $1,178,152

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $756 $75,600 $132,300 $151,200 $189,000 $226,800 $226,800 $226,800 $245,700 $264,600 $283,500 $302,400 $302,400 $302,400
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,200,870 $1,257,570 $1,276,470 $1,314,270 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,259,870 $1,278,770 $1,297,670 $1,316,570 $1,316,570 $1,316,570

Rate decrease ‐10% ‐$125,030

Total Revenue $1,125,270 $1,200,870 $1,257,570 $1,276,470 $1,314,270 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,259,870 $1,278,770 $1,297,670 $1,316,570 $1,316,570 $1,316,570

Revenue in excess of operating  $238,928 $284,198 $309,051 $294,511 $297,200 $298,133 $259,423 $218,777 $194,999 $169,087 $140,935 $244,763 $192,887 $138,418

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $499,222 $707,420 $956,470 $1,014,981 $1,014,181 $1,261,314 $1,219,737 ‐$161,485 ‐$1,185,486 ‐$1,067,399 ‐$977,464 ‐$783,701 ‐$641,814 ‐$606,396

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $0

Remaining Capital $423,222 $647,420 $720,470 $716,981 $963,181 $960,314 ‐$380,263 ‐$1,380,485 ‐$1,236,486 ‐$1,118,399 ‐$1,028,464 ‐$834,701 ‐$744,814 ‐$727,396

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 60



Projection ‐10% change and $2M debt Scenario 6

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $756 $75,600 $132,300 $151,200 $189,000 $226,800 $226,800 $226,800 $245,700 $264,600 $283,500 $302,400 $302,400 $302,400
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,200,870 $1,257,570 $1,276,470 $1,314,270 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,259,870 $1,278,770 $1,297,670 $1,316,570 $1,316,570 $1,316,570

Rate decrease ‐10% ‐$125,030

Total Revenue $1,125,270 $1,200,870 $1,257,570 $1,276,470 $1,314,270 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,352,070 $1,259,870 $1,278,770 $1,297,670 $1,316,570 $1,316,570 $1,316,570

Revenue in excess of operating  $238,928 $284,198 $309,051 $294,511 $297,200 $298,133 $259,423 $218,777 $194,999 $169,087 $140,935 $86,363 $34,487 ‐$19,982

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $499,222 $707,420 $956,470 $1,014,981 $1,014,181 $1,261,314 $1,219,737 $1,838,515 $814,514 $932,601 $1,022,536 $1,057,899 $1,041,386 $918,404

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $2,000,000

Remaining Capital $423,222 $647,420 $720,470 $716,981 $963,181 $960,314 $1,619,737 $619,515 $763,514 $881,601 $971,536 $1,006,899 $938,386 $797,404

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 60



Projection ‐15% change and no debt Scenario 7

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,071,807 $1,123,683 $1,178,152

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,062,755 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $714 $71,400 $124,950 $142,800 $178,500 $214,200 $214,200 $214,200 $232,050 $249,900 $267,750 $285,600 $285,600 $285,600
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,134,155 $1,250,220 $1,268,070 $1,303,770 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,246,220 $1,264,070 $1,281,920 $1,299,770 $1,299,770 $1,299,770

Rate decrease ‐15% ‐$187,545

Total Revenue $1,062,755 $1,134,155 $1,250,220 $1,268,070 $1,303,770 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,246,220 $1,264,070 $1,281,920 $1,299,770 $1,299,770 $1,299,770

Revenue in excess of operating  $176,413 $217,483 $301,701 $286,111 $286,700 $285,533 $246,823 $206,177 $181,349 $154,387 $125,185 $227,963 $176,087 $121,618

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $436,707 $578,190 $819,890 $870,001 $858,701 $1,093,234 $1,039,057 ‐$354,765 ‐$1,392,416 ‐$1,289,029 ‐$1,214,844 ‐$1,037,881 ‐$912,794 ‐$894,176

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $0

Remaining Capital $360,707 $518,190 $583,890 $572,001 $807,701 $792,234 ‐$560,943 ‐$1,573,765 ‐$1,443,416 ‐$1,340,029 ‐$1,265,844 ‐$1,088,881 ‐$1,015,794 ‐$1,015,176

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 60



Projection ‐15% change and $2M debt Scenario 8

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,062,755 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $714 $71,400 $124,950 $142,800 $178,500 $214,200 $214,200 $214,200 $232,050 $249,900 $267,750 $285,600 $285,600 $285,600
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,134,155 $1,250,220 $1,268,070 $1,303,770 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,246,220 $1,264,070 $1,281,920 $1,299,770 $1,299,770 $1,299,770

Rate decrease ‐15% ‐$187,545

Total Revenue $1,062,755 $1,134,155 $1,250,220 $1,268,070 $1,303,770 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,339,470 $1,246,220 $1,264,070 $1,281,920 $1,299,770 $1,299,770 $1,299,770

Revenue in excess of operating  $176,413 $217,483 $301,701 $286,111 $286,700 $285,533 $246,823 $206,177 $181,349 $154,387 $125,185 $69,563 $17,687 ‐$36,782

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $436,707 $578,190 $819,890 $870,001 $858,701 $1,093,234 $1,039,057 $1,645,235 $607,584 $710,971 $785,156 $803,719 $770,406 $630,624

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $2,000,000

Remaining Capital $360,707 $518,190 $583,890 $572,001 $807,701 $792,234 $1,439,057 $426,235 $556,584 $659,971 $734,156 $752,719 $667,406 $509,624

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 60



Projection ‐20% change and no debt Scenario 9

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,071,807 $1,123,683 $1,178,152

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,000,240 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $672 $67,200 $117,600 $134,400 $168,000 $201,600 $201,600 $201,600 $218,400 $235,200 $252,000 $268,800 $268,800 $268,800
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,067,440 $1,242,870 $1,259,670 $1,293,270 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,232,570 $1,249,370 $1,266,170 $1,282,970 $1,282,970 $1,282,970

Rate decrease ‐20% ‐$250,060

Total Revenue $1,000,240 $1,067,440 $1,242,870 $1,259,670 $1,293,270 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,232,570 $1,249,370 $1,266,170 $1,282,970 $1,282,970 $1,282,970

Revenue in excess of operating  $113,898 $150,768 $294,351 $277,711 $276,200 $272,933 $234,223 $193,577 $167,699 $139,687 $109,435 $211,163 $159,287 $104,818

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $374,192 $448,960 $683,310 $725,021 $703,221 $925,154 $858,377 ‐$548,045 ‐$1,599,346 ‐$1,510,659 ‐$1,452,224 ‐$1,292,061 ‐$1,183,774 ‐$1,181,956

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years

Remaining Capital $298,192 $388,960 $447,310 $427,021 $652,221 $624,154 ‐$741,623 ‐$1,767,045 ‐$1,650,346 ‐$1,561,659 ‐$1,503,224 ‐$1,343,061 ‐$1,286,774 ‐$1,302,956

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 60



Projection ‐25% change and $2M debt Scenario 10

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $1,000,240 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $672 $67,200 $117,600 $134,400 $168,000 $201,600 $201,600 $201,600 $218,400 $235,200 $252,000 $268,800 $268,800 $268,800
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,067,440 $1,242,870 $1,259,670 $1,293,270 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,232,570 $1,249,370 $1,266,170 $1,282,970 $1,282,970 $1,282,970

Rate decrease ‐20% ‐$250,060

Total Revenue $1,000,240 $1,067,440 $1,242,870 $1,259,670 $1,293,270 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,326,870 $1,232,570 $1,249,370 $1,266,170 $1,282,970 $1,282,970 $1,282,970

Revenue in excess of operating  $113,898 $150,768 $294,351 $277,711 $276,200 $272,933 $234,223 $193,577 $167,699 $139,687 $109,435 $52,763 $887 ‐$53,582

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $374,192 $448,960 $683,310 $725,021 $703,221 $925,154 $858,377 $1,451,955 $400,654 $489,341 $547,776 $549,539 $499,426 $342,844

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $2,000,000

Remaining Capital $298,192 $388,960 $447,310 $427,021 $652,221 $624,154 $1,258,377 $232,955 $349,654 $438,341 $496,776 $498,539 $396,426 $221,844

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 60



Projection ‐25% change and $2M debt Scenario 11

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,071,807 $1,123,683 $1,178,152

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $937,725 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $630 $63,000 $110,250 $126,000 $157,500 $189,000 $189,000 $189,000 $204,750 $220,500 $236,250 $252,000 $252,000 $252,000
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,000,725 $1,235,520 $1,251,270 $1,282,770 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,218,920 $1,234,670 $1,250,420 $1,266,170 $1,266,170 $1,266,170

Rate decrease ‐25% ‐$312,575

Total Revenue $937,725 $1,000,725 $1,235,520 $1,251,270 $1,282,770 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,218,920 $1,234,670 $1,250,420 $1,266,170 $1,266,170 $1,266,170

Revenue in excess of operating  $51,383 $84,053 $287,001 $269,311 $265,700 $260,333 $221,623 $180,977 $154,049 $124,987 $93,685 $194,363 $142,487 $88,018

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $311,677 $319,730 $546,730 $580,041 $547,741 $757,074 $677,697 ‐$741,325 ‐$1,806,276 ‐$1,732,289 ‐$1,689,604 ‐$1,546,241 ‐$1,454,754 ‐$1,469,736

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years

Remaining Capital $235,677 $259,730 $310,730 $282,041 $496,741 $456,074 ‐$922,303 ‐$1,960,325 ‐$1,857,276 ‐$1,783,289 ‐$1,740,604 ‐$1,597,241 ‐$1,557,754 ‐$1,590,736

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 60



Projection ‐25% change and $2M debt Scenario 12

Note 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28
Personnel
Materials and Services 5% $228,780 $240,219 $252,230 $264,841 $278,084 $291,988 $306,587 $321,916 $338,012 $354,913 $372,659 $391,291 $410,856 $431,399
Debt $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $134,333 $158,400 $158,400 $158,400
Interfund Transfers 5% $377,829 $396,720 $416,556 $437,384 $459,254 $482,216 $506,327 $531,643 $558,226 $586,137 $615,444 $646,216 $678,527 $712,453
Special Payments $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $145,400 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300 $34,300

Operating Revenue Need $886,342 $916,672 $948,519 $981,959 $1,017,070 $1,053,937 $1,092,647 $1,133,293 $1,064,871 $1,109,683 $1,156,735 $1,230,207 $1,282,083 $1,336,552

Current Revenue $1,250,300 $937,725 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,125,270 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170 $1,014,170

New home revenues $630 $63,000 $110,250 $126,000 $157,500 $189,000 $189,000 $189,000 $204,750 $220,500 $236,250 $252,000 $252,000 $252,000
additional units/$63/month annually 100 175 200 250 300 300 300 325 350 375 400 400 400

All revenue $1,250,300 $1,000,725 $1,235,520 $1,251,270 $1,282,770 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,218,920 $1,234,670 $1,250,420 $1,266,170 $1,266,170 $1,266,170

Rate decrease ‐25% ‐$312,575

Total Revenue $937,725 $1,000,725 $1,235,520 $1,251,270 $1,282,770 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,314,270 $1,218,920 $1,234,670 $1,250,420 $1,266,170 $1,266,170 $1,266,170

Revenue in excess of operating  $51,383 $84,053 $287,001 $269,311 $265,700 $260,333 $221,623 $180,977 $154,049 $124,987 $93,685 $35,963 ‐$15,913 ‐$70,382

Beginning capital
Capital available before CIP $260,294 $311,677 $319,730 $546,730 $580,041 $547,741 $757,074 $677,697 $1,258,675 $193,724 $267,711 $310,396 $295,359 $228,446 $55,064

CIP Expenses $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $298,000 $51,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000

New 2M debt at 5% 20 years $2,000,000

Remaining Capital $235,677 $259,730 $310,730 $282,041 $496,741 $456,074 $1,077,697 $39,675 $142,724 $216,711 $259,396 $244,359 $125,446 ‐$65,936

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 60



WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Category  Project Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Short Term 
Total

Telemetry and 
Control

New Supervisory 
Control and Data 
Acquisition System 
(SCADA) SCADA

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $87,000 $87,000

Pumping 
Facilities

Pump Station 
Upgrades

Pump house 
improvemen
ts‐
foundation

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000

Booster Pump 
Station

Pump 
Station #2*

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $460,000 $460,000

Distribution 
system Piping

Fire Flow and 
Distribution 
Improvements

12" 
Gordon

12" 
Commerci
al 12" Glencoe

$60,000 $0 $247,000 $250,000 $0 $557,000
Fire Flow and 
Distribution 
Improvements 8" 309th

$0 $31,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $31,000

Main Replacement 
Program $76,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $331,000

Storage 
Facilities New Reservoir

New 1.02 
MG Tank

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $972,000 $972,000

Upgrades to 
existing Reservoir

Earthquake 
stabilization

$0 $0 $154,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $154,000
TOTAL $76,000 $60,000 $236,000 $51,000 $298,000 $301,000 $1,600,000 $2,622,000

UR Eligible $60,000 $247,000 $307,000

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 60



Category  Project Description 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31
Short Term 
Total

Long Term 
Year Total

Telemetry and 
Control

New Supervisory 
Control and Data 
Acquisition System 
(SCADA)

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $87,000
Pumping 
Facilities

Pump Station 
Upgrades

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000
Booster Pump 
Station

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $460,000

Distribution 
system Piping

Fire Flow and 
Distribution 
Improvements 8" Hillcrest 8" Highland 8" North

$85,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $52,000 $0 $0 $0 $141,000 $278,000 $835,000

Fire Flow and 
Distribution 
Improvements 12"313th 8" Gordon

8" Wascoe 
Gordon to 
Timric

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,000 $196,000 $0 $0 $266,000 $297,000

Main Replacement 
Program $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $510,000 $841,000

Storage 
Facilities New Reservoir

$1,083,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,083,000 $2,055,000

Upgrades to 
existing Reservoir

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $154,000
TOTAL $1,219,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $51,000 $103,000 $121,000 $121,000 $247,000 $192,000 $2,207,000 $4,829,000

UR Eligible $52,000 $52,000 $359,000

* Related projects
UR eligible
Development driven

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 60



 

Agenda Item No: 9B      

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  June 11, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager  

Subject: Resolution No. 1843 accepting dedication of rights of way and easements 
in Sunset Ridge Subdivision 

Request: Council adopt Resolution No. 1843 accepting dedication of rights of way 
and easements in the Sunset Ridge Subdivision. 
 
Background:  The final plat for the Sunset Ridge subdivision has been submitted to the 
City. Municipal code section 16.135.035 Final Subdivision Plat Review states: 
 

A. The final subdivision plat shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for review 
pursuant to the Application Review section of this chapter. The Planning 
Commission shall review the plat to assure compliance with the approved 
preliminary plat and with the conditions of approval.  The Planning Commission 
Chairman or Commission designee shall signify Planning Commission approval of 
the final plat by signing the recorder's plat sheet and exact duplicate.  However, if 
the plat includes dedication of any newly created public roads the City Council shall 
either accept a deed of dedication on a form acceptable to the City, or authorize the 
mayor or other City Council designee to sign an acceptance of dedication on the 
final plat. 

The Planning Commission has approved the plat subject to Council’s approval of street 
names.  Commissioner LaBonte suggested that King Avenue should be renamed to 
289th Avenue. 

The proposed resolution will authorize the City Manager to sign the plat on behalf of City 
and confirm the street name selection.  A copy of the plat is attached.  The street names 
to be approved are: 

 Carver Street 
 Davis Drive 
 Dobbins Ave 
 Fair Street 
 Kaye Way 
 Keenon Street 
 Kelly Drive 
 Mays Street  
 Shaddon Terrace 
 289th Ave (shown as King Avenue on the proposed plat) 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 60



Fiscal Impact:  Adoption of the resolution has no fiscal impact. 
 
Environmental Issues:  Approval of the plat is one of the final steps in advance of the 
development of the property, which will transition from farm use to residential use as is 
consistent with the Master Plan for the east area.  
 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 1843. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to approve Resolution No. 1843. 
 
Attachments:  Plat, Resolution No. 1843 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 60



REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON

JULY 9, 2002

57751

RENEWS: 6/30/2015

TRAVIS C. JANSEN

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 60

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9B PLAT

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text
 

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text



REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON

JULY 9, 2002

57751

RENEWS: 6/30/2015

TRAVIS C. JANSEN

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 60



REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON

JULY 9, 2002

57751

RENEWS: 6/30/2015

TRAVIS C. JANSEN

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 60



REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON

JULY 9, 2002

57751

RENEWS: 6/30/2015

TRAVIS C. JANSEN

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 60



REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON

JULY 9, 2002

57751

RENEWS: 6/30/2015

TRAVIS C. JANSEN

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 60



REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON

JULY 9, 2002

57751

RENEWS: 6/30/2015

TRAVIS C. JANSEN

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 60



 

9Bc 150 Street Names Policy 
Page 1 of 6 
 

City of North Plains Policy 

Number: 150 Title: Street Naming 

Date: 09/01/13 Signed:  

 
Purpose 

Policy outlines process for selecting street names in the City of North Plains. 
 
Policy 

All new streets, including private streets, created by a subdivision or partitioning process will 
be designated and approved by the City of North Plains in accordance with the standards of 
this policy and shall become effective on recording of a final plat. 
 
Any new street not created by a subdivision or major partition and created by a public 
dedication may be named by the deed of dedication subsequent to the approval of the City 
Council at a public meeting, and will become effective upon recording of the deed of 
dedication.  
 
Privately owned streets, not designated as right of way, are subject to the same street name 
standards as are public streets, except that they are not required to be approved by Council.   
All private street signs will be provided at the owner(s) expense and addresses will be assigned 
by the City. 
 
Naming 

All streets named or renamed will comply with the following criteria: 
 

 Collector streets, local roads and highways (arterials) shall maintain a common name or 
number for the entire contiguous alignment inside the corporate limits of North Plains. 

 

 Whenever practicable, historical family names, names of former Mayors, and parade grand 
marshal will be utilized or retained and be subject to the considerations as outlined below. 

 

 Hyphenated, multiple words, or other exceptionally long names requiring more than 25 
characters will be avoided. 

 

 No street will be given a name that is the same as, similar to, or pronounced the same as, 
any other street within the jurisdiction of the City of North Plains unless that street is an 
extension of an already-named street. 

 

 Consideration will be given to the continuation of the name of a street in another 
jurisdiction when it is extended into the City of North Plains. 

 

Agenda Item No: 9B 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 60



 

9Bc 150 Street Names Policy 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 Names that are difficult to pronounce or spell will be avoided. 
 

 Abbreviated street names will not be allowed. 
 

 Priority shall be given to names listed in the Street Name Pool as described below. 
 
All proposed street names will be reviewed, prior to use, by the City staff to determine whether 
the proposed street names comply with the standards and classifications set forth in this 
policy. 
 
Classifications 

The following classifications (suffixes) will be utilized in the assignment of new street names: 
 

Road: major north/south street providing through traffic movement across the community; 
 
Boulevard: major east/west street providing through traffic movement across the 
community; 
 
Avenue: continuous, north/south thoroughfare or extension thereof; 
 
Street: continuous east/west thoroughfare or extension thereof; 
 
Lane: short east/west street under one thousand feet in length; 
 
Terrace: short north/south street under one thousand feet in length; 
 
Drive: curvilinear thoroughfare (less than one hundred eighty degrees) at least one 
thousand feet in length; 
 
Court: east/west cul-de-sac;  
 
Place: north/south cul-de-sac; 
 
Way: loop street (exceeding one hundred eighty degrees);  
 
Parkway: a broad landscaped thoroughfare. 
The City Council may grant an exception to the street name standards specified under on a 
case-by-case basis and subsequent to accepting public comment. 

 
Street Name Pool 

Whenever practicable, historical family names will be considered in the naming or renaming of 
public or private streets.    Factors to be considered will include, but are not limited to the 
following: 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 60



 

9Bc 150 Street Names Policy 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 Original holders of donation land claims in the City of North Plains or Washington County; 
 

 Early homesteaders or settlers of the City of North Plains or Washington County; 
 

 Heirs of original settlers or long-time (minimum 50 years) residents of the City of North 
Plains or Washington County; 

 

 Explorers of, or having to do with, the City of North Plains or Washington County; 
 

 Native American tribes indigenous to the City of North Plains or Washington County;  
 

 Early leaders and pioneers of eminence of the City of North Plains or Washington County. 
 
The City Council shall adopt a "Street Name Pool" by Resolution, and the City staff shall 
maintain the Street Name Pool containing an acceptable list of street names based on the 
historical factors shown above.  Names listed in the Street Name Pool shall be given 
priority for assigning names to new streets or the renaming of streets. 
  

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 60



 

9Bc 150 Street Names Policy 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Street Name Pool May 2014 
 
Historical Family Names 

List of families associated with North Plains.  Information culled from Ancestry.com database.  
Families that appeared for three census cycles (30 years) are listed by first census date.  
(Census prior to 1920 do not cite North Plains.  Most classified as rural Washington, Oregon) 
 

Bantz Appear 1920 census 

Blake Appear 1930 census 

Bunger 1900 census, 1940 census 

Bunke Appear 1920 census 

Carey Appear 1920 census 

Carver 1900 & 1940 census 

Christener Swiss immigrants - Owners of hotel and meat market served railroad crews 

Conklin Charles Conklin buried 3/22/1883 in North Plains appear in 1920 census 

Cox Part of Cypher and Mays families worked at Mays Bro. 

Cropp Victor Cropp buried 1867 in North Plains 1920 census 

Cypher First Councilor Lester 

Davis Florence Davis buried 1894 in North Plains family appears in 1920 census 

DeFreeze Owners of mill and feed store 

Dicke Owner of brick yard in 1900’s 

Dobbins John Dobbins buried 12/9/1872 in North Plains.   

Fair Appear 1920 census 

Fowler Founded first store in Glencoe 

Garwood Appear 1920 census 

Grenier Appear 1920 census 

Harms Appear 1920 census 

Hartley Birth announcements 1883, 1920 census 

Hendrickson Appear 1920 census 

Hess Appear 1920 census 

Hollenbeck Bazel Hollenbeck buried 5/4/1921 in NP, appear in 1940 census 

Hundley Appear 1920 census 

Hunter Boarding house owner Kaybern and Main 

Ireland Appear in 1870 census in area, owned Mays Bros 1920-25 

Jacky Appear in 1920 Census  

Joss Appear 1920 census 

Jossy Appear 1900 census in WA county 

Kahle Appear 1920 and later in Verboort 

Keenon First Councilor Harold, Richard Keenon buried 6/12/1923  

King Appear 1920 census 

LaMordden Property owners 

Langue Appear 1920 census and class of 33 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 60



 

9Bc 150 Street Names Policy 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Lincoln Appear 1900 census in area 

Martin Appear 1920 census 

Mays Owners of Mays mercantile 

McCuen Pictured in 1933 

McCumsey 

 
Meyer Appear in 1920 census 

Millet Appear 1920 census, class of 33 

Moon Appear 1920 census 

Moore Appear 1920 census 

Offidal First doctor in town 

Ould First Councilor Cliff 

Provis First Councilor Mrs. William 

Reese Appear 1940 census 

Reynolds Appear 1920 census, owned feed mill 

Robb 

 
Rossback Appear 1920 census 

Rufer Appear 1920 census 

Ruth Owner of feed mill 1950 

Schoenberg Julius partner in Mays Bros pictured on website 

Shaddon Pool hall and tavern owner, 1920 census 

Sipp Appear 1920 census 

Schaer Appear 1920 census 

Schlaefli Appear 1920 census, class of 33 

Stafford Dr. and owner of store in old Glencoe 

Stewart Blanch Stewart first hair dresser 

Strauss Appear 1920 Census 

Sumner Telephone operator 

Sutherland Appear 1920 census 

Tompkins Appear 1920 census 

Thompson Appear 1920 census 

Townsend Appear 1920 census 

Tucker Appear 1920 census 

Troutman Appear 1920 census Postmaster 1914, market owner 

Vandehey Appear 1900 census in area 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 60



 

9Bc 150 Street Names Policy 
Page 6 of 6 
 

VanDyck Mill owners since 1950’s 

Volpp Appear 1940 census 

Walter Appear 1900 census 

Wing Property owners 

Wirtz Appear 1920 census 

 
Mayors 

Cook James Olson 
Drexel Kent Riley 
Frace Kindel Sandford 
Hatcher MacLeod Theis 
Hirst  Vanderzanden 

 
Parade Marshals 

Fields Vandomelen 
 
Process to add names to pool: 

City Council shall approve a list of street names which may be used in North Plains. If anyone 
wishes to have an additional family name considered, he or she should prepare a letter to the 
City Council which provides the name and a brief explanation of the family’s local heritage.  
Such requests shall be considered at regular meetings of the City Council within 60 days of 
receipt by the City Recorder. 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 60



Resolution No.1843 
Public ROW and Easements in Sunset Ridge Subdivision 

RESOLUTION NO. 1843 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 

ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS IN THE 
SUNSET RIDGE SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, an application for a final plat has been made by Polygon Northwest on behalf 
of property owners McKay Creek LLC and Jackson Farm Land LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has approved the proposed plat subject to Council 
approval of street names; and  
 
WHEREAS, Municipal Code Section 16.135.040 requires that a representative of the City 
sign plat maps; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposed plat map. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
  
 Section 1. The City Manager is authorized to accept the rights of ways and 

easements as proposed on the final plat for the Sunset Ridge 
Development.   

 
 Section 2.  Applicant, at its sole expense, is required to install public 

improvements as required by the Municipal Code and conditions 
of approval for the Sunset Ridge Subdivision.  

 
 Section 3. The City Council approves the street names as proposed on the 

plat, with the exception of King Street which shall be renamed 
289th Ave. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of June, 2014. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 

 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 60

mreh
Typewritten Text
May 2014 Check Register

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9C



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 60



____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 60



July 2014 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

     

North Plains Marketplace    Thursday, on 
Commercial Street 07/03 

First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall! 
Movie in the Hall…(none this month due to 4th of July) 6:00 p.m. --------- 

City Council    
7:00 p.m. at North 
Plains Senior Center 

07/07 

Planning Commission Broome  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 07/09 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 07/10 

North Plains Marketplace    Thursday, on 
Commercial Street 07/10 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 07/14 

234th Army Band (Concert in 
the Park)   

6:30 Wednesday @ 
Jessie Mays Community 
Park 

07/16 

Library Board Kindel  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 07/16 

North Plains Marketplace    Thursday, on 
Commercial Street 07/17 

City Council    7:00 p.m. at North 
Plains Senior Center 

07/21 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 07/23 

Parks Board  4th Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 07/23 

North Plains Marketplace    Thursday, on 
Commercial Street 07/24 

North Plains Marketplace    Thursday, on 
Commercial Street 07/31 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

DeBry Demagalski   

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 60



NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

 
Monday, June 16, 2014 @ 7:30 p.m. 

MEETING DATE AND TIME 
 

North Plains Senior Center 
LOCATION 

 

THIS MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER UNDER AUTHORITY OF: 

 192.660(2)(a) Employment of public officer, staff member or individual (attorney) 

 192.660(2)(b) Discipline of Public Officers and Employees 

 192.660(2)(d) Labor Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions 

 192.660(2)(f) Exempt Public Records 

 192.690(2)(g) Trade Negotiations 

 192.660(2)(h) Legal Counsel 

X 192.660(2)(i) Employee Evaluations 

 192.660(2)(j) Public Investments 

 
PURSUANT TO OREGON REVISED STATUTES, 

NO INFORMATION FROM THIS SESSION SHALL BE DISCLOSED BY THE NEWS MEDIA. 
 

 
 
In Attendance:    
 Elected Officials:    
   Mayor David Hatcher  Council President Lenahan  
   Councilor Kindel  Councilor Demagalski  
   Councilor Broome  Councilor Newton  
   Councilor Warren   
     
 Staff:    
     
 City Attorney:    
     
 Consultants:    
     
 Media:    
     
Called to Order at: ______________ Adjourned at: _______________ 
     
Specific Issue Discussed: 

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 60


	4A 061614 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 060214 City Council Minutes
	9A Memo water rates
	9Ab water rate 1
	9Ac CIP 052714
	9B Memo approving Res No. 1843 street names
	9Bb AA plat.Sunset Ridge.2014-04-22.City Submittal 1 (1)
	9Bc 150 Street Names Policy
	9Bd Resolution No. 1843 Sunset Ridge Final Plat
	9C May 2014 Check Register
	13B Calendar July 2014
	15 EXECUTIVE SESSION TOPIC Form for Minutes



